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Administrative Questions

1. Is there an operational definition for "work in California"? For example, if a California entity bills for work that may fractionally include work of an out of state subcontractor does this impact the "work in California" constraint?

There is no “work in California” constraint however; Scoring Criteria 6 on Page 28 of the PON manual defines “spent in California” as:   

 “Spent in California” means that: (1) Funds under the “Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor in the B-4 budget attachments (Prime and Subcontractor Labor Rates) are paid to individuals who pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement; and (2) Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, rentals, and contractual work) are entered into with a business located in California. 

Airline ticket purchases and payments made to out-of-state workers are not considered funds “spent in California.” However, funds spent by out-of-state workers in California (e.g., hotel and food) are considered funds “spent in California.”

2. Will this morning’s pre-application workshop webex meeting be available?

The workshop audio was not recorded but the workshop documents such as the presentation and question and answer document are available online at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#PON-14-310. 

3. Can a project be shorter than the 36 to 48 months listed under the Scope of Work requirements?

Part III, Section C.2 of the Application Manual will be amended as follows: 

Scope of Work Template (Attachments 6 and 6a)
Applicants must include a completed Scope of Work for each project, as instructed in the template. The Scope of Work identifies the tasks required to complete the project. It includes a project schedule that lists all products, meetings, and due dates. All work must be scheduled for completion within 36 to 48 months of the project start date no later than the anticipated agreement end date identified in the Key Activities Schedule (Part I, Section F). 

4. Are there any restrictions on the term or duration of the project?

As identified in the Key Activities Schedule in the Application Manual (page 8), the anticipated agreement start date should be August 2015 and the end date should be no later than March 31, 2018. 





5. [bookmark: _Toc382571191][bookmark: _Toc395180701]Suggest deleting PON requirement “Separate each section of the application by a tab that is labeled only with the tab number and section title….”

The requirement to “Separate each section of the application by a tab that is labeled only with the tab number and section of the title…” has already been established for this solicitation; however, the suggestion to remove this requirement will be considered for future solicitations. 

6. [bookmark: _Toc409009639]Could you explain the IP policy? For example, will the patents generated from this research be shared?  

The Recipient owns all intellectual properties (IP) subject to the licenses described in Section 21, Subsection b of the Terms and Conditions (www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms).  Under these terms, both the Energy Commission and the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) have a license to use intellectual property for governmental purposes.  In addition, both the Energy Commission and the CPUC can grant load-serving entities (LSE) a license to the intellectual property for the limited purpose to “enhance the entities’ service to EPIC ratepayers.”      
  
7. [bookmark: _Toc409009215][bookmark: _Toc409009640]Due to the release of the PON right before the holidays and businesses being closed over that time period, the number of questions that came up in the pre-bid regarding the PON scope, and that Q&As are not expected to be out until January 20th, we request the due date be extended at least one week to allow for teams to assimilate information from the Q&As and provide well thought out proposals.

[bookmark: _Toc409009216][bookmark: _Toc409009641]The proposal due date will remain as February 6, 2015 by 3:00 p.m.

8. Is the funding ($4M) set or is there a possibility of more funding being allocated to these projects?

[bookmark: _Toc409009642]Part I, Section E, item 3 of the application manual indicates that the Energy Commission reserves the right to allocate additional funds to passing applicants. At this time there are no plans to allocate additional funding to this solicitation.  

9. For the four million dollars, is there a certain amount allocated to each project group? 

[bookmark: _Toc409009643]No. There is no break-out of the $4 million between the two funding groups.  

10.   Will there be a minimum award guaranteed from each project group? Can all of the Awards be granted from a single project group?
[bookmark: _Toc409009644]
No. There is no minimum funding amount identified for each project group.  Passing proposals from both groups will be ranked on one list and funding will start from the highest scoring project and work down the list until funds are exhausted.  It is possible that all awards could be granted to a single project group if they are the highest scoring proposals.



11. Many CEC PONs require evidence of communication with the CEQA LEA. Does this PON require that?

[bookmark: _Toc409009645]This solicitation does not require evidence of communication with the CEQA LEA, but it is required that the Applicant complete the CEQA Compliance Form (Attachment 8) in the solicitation package.

12.  If the top three ranked proposals all bid for 1.5 million dollars  and the fourth proposal bid for half a million dollars, there would not be sufficient funding to fund the third project in full. What would you do in that circumstance? Would you skip over them or would you negotiate with them first before moving to the fourth ranked proposal?

[bookmark: _Toc409009646]If there are insufficient funds to fund the last funded project on the list in full, we would work with that Applicant to see if we could agree on a reduced scope that would be consistent with the amount of funds remaining. 
[bookmark: _Toc409009647]Match Funding Questions

13. On matching funds, can we include already existing equipment, specifically existing charging stations?

No.  Already existing equipment does not qualify as match funding as Part I, Section E.2 mentions specifically “match funds may be spent only during the agreement term, either before or concurrently with EPIC funds.”

14. On matching funds, can we include software licenses needed specifically for this project that does not already exist at the host site?

Software licenses needed for the proposed project are eligible to count as match only if purchased during the term of the agreement.  Please refer to page 6 of the Application Manual for a description of eligible services. 

15. Can the cost of CPU (central processing unit) hours related to a high performance computing cluster be considered as an eligible cost match?

Yes. The cost of central processing unit hours could be counted as match if applicable to the proposed project and occurs during the term of the agreement. 

16. Can EPIC funds provided by institutions other than the Energy Commission be used as match funding?

No. Part I, Section E.2 of the Application Manual states that match funds do not include EPIC funds received from other sources.




17. Can CEC funds of any kind can be counted as match, and if so, which CEC fund sources?

No. Part I, Section E.2 of the Application Manual states that match funds do not include Energy Commission awards.

18. Can equipment purchased prior to the project term be counted as match?

No, please see response to Question 13.

19. Can equipment purchased with CEC funds (current or previous projects) be counted as match?

No. Part I, Section E.2 of the Application Manual states that match funds do not include Energy Commission awards, which extends to equipment purchased with current or previous Energy Commission awards.  

20. Can related licensing fees be counted as match?

Yes, licensing fees can count towards match funds as long as they are in support of the project, and occur during the agreement term.      
[bookmark: _Toc409009648]Proposal Evaluation Questions

21. How will the proposal be measured relative to testing?

It is up to the Applicant to identify and describe the technical tasks for development work, including testing. The solicitation does not define which test protocols to use or how to validate the proposed development work; it is up to the Applicant to identify and describe the testing and validation processes for their proposed activities.  The proposal review team will use the scoring criteria to evaluate the strength of the approach being proposed, including the testing, and score based on how well the results of the proposed project meets the goals of the solicitation.

22. Would a simulation platform be a valid way in the eyes of the CEC to evaluate technology to ensure that we don’t strain the existing electric grid and that we maintain PEV mobility? Would that be disqualified?

An Applicant that proposes a simulation platform would not be disqualified. It is up to the Applicant to identify and describe how a simulation platform would sufficiently test and validate the proposed technology. The proposal review team will use the scoring criteria to evaluate the strength of the approach being proposed.
 
23. How will you evaluate a company’s ability to demonstrate their financial ability to complete the project? 

A company’s ability to demonstrate their financial ability to complete the project will be evaluated based on the information provided relative to Scoring Criterion 4, however additional information submitted, such as letters of commitment for match funding, may also be used. 


24.   Is there any benefit, point-wise for a project to fall into both Groups?  

Applicants must identify on the Application Form (Attachment 1) which of the two project groups the proposed activities fit best. There is no benefit, point-wise, for projects to fall into both groups.

25. In some of the previous budget workshops they have been talking about an emphasis on disadvantaged communities and assigning points for placement of projects within disadvantaged communities as well as how it will impact them, is that something that will be irrelevant to this, or is that something that we should include in our analysis of the narrative?

This solicitation does not require projects be located in an economically disadvantaged area and does not allocate additional points in the scoring criteria for projects that are located in disadvantaged communities.  Applicants are encouraged to describe additional or enhanced benefits that may result from a project located in a disadvantaged community in the Impacts and Benefits for California IOU Ratepayers section of the Scoring Criteria (see Scoring Criterion 3).   

26. Can an institution apply to both the groups 1 and 2?  If we can apply, then are they two separate applications?

There is no limit to the number of proposals an entity can submit; however the projects proposed must be separate and distinct.  Also, the proposed projects must be able to be completed independently and cannot be dependent on one another.  
[bookmark: _Toc409009649]Technical Questions

27. In group one, would a technology project working on smart chargers themselves and integrating technological solution be considered eligible for this, or are you seeking something closer to concept papers on strategies?

Yes, a project proposing to work on smart chargers and integrating a technological solution that would help to meet the goals of the solicitation would be eligible.

28. Would bench-scale testing a smart charger and developing that technology for higher voltage be considered an applied research activity?

Yes. Testing at bench-scale would be considered applied research.  It is the Applicant’s responsibility to ensure the activities proposed are consistent with the Eligible Projects section of the Application Manual.  

29. In both Groups 1 and 2, one of the stated goals is to "Give utilities or third parties the ability to access and control scheduled charging of PEVs while maintaining the PEV owner's mobility needs" and "...allow utilities to send dispatch signals to PEVs...while maintaining the driver's mobility needs".   This suggests a goal of maintaining the traditional central dispatch model while adding some form of two-way communication to incorporate driver needs in the decision processes.  Our question is if this precludes distributed decision techniques and technologies which are emerging under the heading of Transactive Energy (the CPUC recently published a paper on this topic)?    

A goal statement which would reflect these new techniques might be more like "enable utilities and third parties to communicate specific grid operational needs (in the form of price signals, forecasts of price signals or other incentives) to PEVs so that they can make independent decisions based on the owner's/driver's requirements in the context of utility pricing or other behavioral incentives."   The introduction to the Group 1 area seems to actually reflect this goal.

There is an important if subtle distinction between the PON language and the above in that the PON implies a deterministic control of charging schedules by a utility or third party as opposed to a more collaborative set of decisions but less deterministic results from a utility perspective.   

The language does not preclude distributed decision techniques and technologies. The goal of the solicitation is to identify and develop strategies that will allow utilities and/or third parties the ability to optimally manage PEV charging within the parameters of maintaining the PEV owner’s mobility requirement or preferences. Deterministic control of charging schedules was not implied by the solicitation to favor a utility or third-party with the exception of a scenario where the PEV user participates in a program that allows utility or third-party control.   

30. Can funds in PON 14-310 be used to repower vehicles as a part of a demonstration?

There is no restriction on spending funds to repower vehicles; however, as stated in Scoring Criteria 5 of the Application Manual Applicants must “justify the reasonableness of the requested funds relative to the project goals, objectives, and tasks”.

31. Can EPIC funds be used to purchase electric vehicles, charging stations, or battery testing equipment and phasor measurement units?

The Application Manual does not exclude the purchase of equipment such as electric vehicles, charging stations, battery testing equipment, or phasor measurement units. As identified in Scoring Criteria 5, proposals will be evaluated on the “reasonableness of the requested funds relative to the project goals, objectives, and tasks.”  

32.  Is there a restriction on the type and/or age of any vehicle that will be used in a demonstration under PON 14-310?

[bookmark: _Toc409009650]There are no restrictions on the type and/or age of vehicles chosen to be part of the project.  








33. Group 2 appears to be focused on communication interfaces.  For fully optimized V2G applications there may be new or improved charging hardware needed, particularly for DC fast charging applications.  Will the CEC consider proposals that include improvements to charging hardware along with communication interfaces or is the PON strictly focused on communication interfaces?

There is no restriction on funding to improve charging hardware; however, as stated in Scoring Criteria 5 (pg. 27) Applicants must “justify the reasonableness of the requested funds relative to the project goals, objectives, and tasks”.

34.  Attachment 12 - Benefits guidance is focused on residential and commercial, but not electric vehicles or the grid. Will you be providing target guidance so that respondents can use standard data for calculating benefits?

No.  The Applicant should provide the source of the data used for calculating benefits.  One source may be the California Energy Demand 2014-2024 Demand Final Forecast, CEC-200-2013-004-V1-CMF (http://www.energy.ca.gov/2013publications/CEC-200-2013-004/CEC-200-2013-004-V1-CMF.pdf); however, other sources may also be used. 

35.  Can sample demand charges, similar to the average energy costs as provided in Attachment 12, be provided?
 
No. See response to Question 34.

36.  Within group 2, can battery storage be used to substitute for V2G PEVs, given the lack of V2G capable PEVs available publicly? Or, can V2G capability be simulated?  

Battery storage cannot be used to substitute for V2G of PEVs.  Validation of V2G developed technology may include simulation.

37. P23, Section E, Question 6 refers to test sites being located in IOU service territories. Is this a restriction or can testing be located outside of IOU territories? (During the workshop it was mentioned that there will be no restriction on territories.)

Applied research activities can be located outside of an IOU territory as long as the proposal can demonstrate benefits to IOU ratepayers.  If a pilot demonstration is included as part of the project, the pilot demonstration must occur within an IOU territory.  

38. Please clarify whether a project can be conducted using EPIC funding in a non-IOU territory.

See Response to Question 38. Also, Section II, Part A, item 1 of the application, indicates that EPIC funds may not be used for any purposes associated with publically-owned utility activates.




39. How do you feel about strategies that are more coordinated in their aspect where you are using pricing signals or some other kind of signals to incentivize people to make their own decision to charge which is different than specifically dispatching a specific vehicle?

Strategies that use pricing signals or some other kind of signals that incentivize charging behaviors are acceptable as long as the proposal can demonstrate that the strategy uses real time communication with the utility or third-party that will allow vehicle charging to go beyond the basic functionality of automated charge modulation to conform to time-of-use tariffs. 

40. We also asked about the importance of using technologies or products in the R&D projects that have demonstrated they are conformant to the standard interface protocols identified in the Solicitation Group 2.  Please confirm what we heard: that having verified or certified interface technology could be a positive in that it leads to faster commercialization.  However, this is not a focus and over-emphasis of this aspect could be a detractor from the value of the proposal.

Interface technologies within the proposed project should be included in the test and validation tasks while certification of interface technologies is not a requirement; however, test and validation that leads to faster commercialization can strengthen a proposal.

41. Can POUs participate as long as they are not the primary contractor?   May they provide test beds for a project and participate as a paid subcontractor?

Correction to the information provided at the workshop:  In accordance with California Public Utilities Commission Decision 12-05-037, EPIC funds administered by the Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with POU activities. POUs may participate as a project partner but may not receive EPIC funding. POUs can provide match funding. 

42. The Group 1 description describes only TOU tariffs known as “incentivized charging" with a footnote that "references employing TOU rates or other incentives..."   Would dynamic pricing or distribution energy markets be considered as "other incentives"?   Is the objective to develop better technologies to specifically address TOU pricing as the primary utility signal to EV’s for grid needs?  Or is this more one example of a utility incentive mechanism that may include many other forms of “incentives”, real-time pricing or other mechanisms to influence EV behavior as a grid asset?   Is it a goal to explore new and different mechanisms for achieving the over-arching objective to better integrate EVs into grid operations beyond the current pricing models in use or under consideration?

TOU pricing is one example of how a utility can signal to EVs for grid needs, however, the goal of the solicitation is to explore mechanisms that go beyond automated charge modulation.  It is up to the Applicant to identify how new or different proposed mechanisms, such as dynamic pricing or energy markets, will meet the goals of the solicitation.  






43. It appears that only Group 2 has the requirement to employ existing smart charging/smart grid interoperability standards such as SEP2, ISO/IEC 15118, J2931 and J2836, 47 and Open ADR 2.0b. As V2G essentially builds on the same foundation as V1G in Group 1, it seemed logical that this should also apply to Group 1.  Is that the case?

For Group 1, no specific standards were listed although the PON does state that work should build on the current state of technology which may include developed standards as listed for Group 2. For Group 2, the intent is to ensure the development supports the protocols listed in the PON. 

44. Would testing and piloting technologies that are not deployed in California yet but are commercially available in other parts of the world qualify for the PON? If a technology has been deployed commercially in other countries but for various reasons -- technical, policy, etc. -- have not been demonstrated in California, would testing and piloting of those technologies specific to California qualify?

No, the solicitation is seeking to advance technologies through applied research and development projects and doesn’t favor demonstration of commercially available technologies. 
New technologies that have already been successfully developed are better suited for technology demonstration and deployment and not applied research funding. 

45. If a project focuses largely on V2G, but also includes V2B, is it eligible for funding?

The V2G portion of the project would be eligible for funding while the V2B portion of the project would not be eligible for funding. 

46. If a project focuses exclusively on V2B, is it eligible for funding?
No.  Projects that focus exclusively on V2B are not eligible for funding. 

47. You have a statement that the R&D must go beyond the current state of the technology, is there some place where there is an evaluation that says what the current standard of technology is?

No, it is the Applicant’s responsibility to identify how the proposed research will advance the current state of technology. The scoring team will evaluate the proposal strength based on the scoring criteria. 

48. For the standards in Group 2, how important is the certification that leads to commercialization?

The purpose of this solicitation is to fund applied research and development projects.  For this PON, certification is not a requirement; however, a project could be strengthened if a clear and accelerated pathway towards commercialization is proposed. 



49. Returning to the question about what is eligible under applied research and development, if part of testing and validation was to install the technology that we developed into real world context, and actually enroll drivers in a program to participate in the demand response, say an aggregated demand response program, is that eligible activity or does it really need to be something totally separate from commercialization?

There is no restriction on the test and validation approach. The “real world” test environment can be proposed as an eligible method for test and validation of developed technology.

50. Is it an absolute requirement that a proposal has to give utilities or third party the override control against the end user, or can the end user override that?

[bookmark: _Toc409009651]To give utilities or third parties the ability to access and control scheduled charging was listed under the goals section in the Application Manual, not the technical requirement section. Therefore, it is not a requirement for a proposal to be eligible. The intent of the solicitation was to develop communications to allow utilities and third parties access and control while maintaining mobility needs. Developed technology should allow PEV user input to define conditions for utility and third party control.

51. For project teams that submitted proposals in PON 14-301, what is your preferred approach for the same teams proposing work in PON-14-310 that would either a) be contingent on receiving an award under PON-14-301 or b) could be performed with less PON-14-310 funding if a PON-14-301 project is awarded.

[bookmark: _Toc409009652]Proposed projects should not be contingent on pending applications under any other solicitations including PON-14-301 as there is a chance both projects may not be awarded funding.  Proposed projects may be complementary to those pending under different solicitations; however, each project should be able to respond to the goals and objectives of each PON independently.   

52. For an example of a complimentary project, would it be possible to do vehicle to grid with a heavy duty vehicle integrated with the grid, then also do a similar project and consider it complimentary by developing a higher voltage charger, having that bench testing and research as a separate project that could stand alone. Would that be considered too similar?

[bookmark: _Toc409009653]As long as the activities are separate, distinct, and could be completed independently, they would be eligible.  

53. Can you give us some suggestions of your expected deliverables that you anticipate out of a project?

[bookmark: _Toc409009654]It is the Applicant’s responsibility to identify and describe the end product of their proposed activities. It should be noted that in the Scope of Work, the deliverables to the Energy Commission should be reports or some form of documentation. For example, if the end product of the proposed activity includes a bidirectional capable vehicle, the deliverable to the Commission will be a report on that vehicle relative to the goal of the total project.
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